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1) No Case Number, Not Filed 
Complaint in Equity to Vacate the McClanahan Judgment, and for violations of title 42 U.S.C. 

section 1983 (civil rights violations). 
Jaime individually, as Co-Executor of the Estate of Harry Mansdorf, and as Trustee of the 
Mansdorf Family Trust, and Linda individually and as Co-Executor of the Estate of Harry 

Mansdorf  
v.  

JANICE M. McCLANAHAN, an individual; TIMOTHY SOTTILE, an individual and active 
member of the California State Bar; THOMAS CACCIATORIE, an individual and active member 
of the California State Bar; DAVID M. MARCUS, an individual and active member of the 
California State Bar;  RUFUS VON THULEN RHOADES, an individual and active member of 
the California State Bar; RICHARD PERCELL, an individual; MICHELE GIACOMAZZA, an 
individual;  IRVING S. FEFFER, an individual, an active member of the California State Bar and 
a former judicial officer in the Los Angeles County Superior Court; PHILLIP J. ARGENTO, an 
individual, an active member of the California State Bar, and a former judicial officer in the Los 
Angeles County Superior Court; JOHN PATRICK SHOOK, an individual, former  judicial officer 
in the Los Angeles County Superior Court and current practicing member of the California State 
Bar; ABRAHAM S. KAHN, an individual, former  judicial officer in the Los Angeles County 
Superior Court and current practicing member of the California State Bar; and DOES 1-5; 
Defendants. 
COMPLETE - 52 PAGES, 
CAUSES OF ACTION: 

1. For Equitable Vacation of the McClanahan Judgment; 
2. Violations of 42 USC section 1983 (depravation of civil rights by state actors acting 

under color of state law); 
3. Violations of 42 USC section 1994 (involuntary servitude); 
4. Violations of 42 USC section 1581 (peonage). 

 
This is the $12,000,000 default judgment case based off an unrecorded, forged deed.  
$10,000,000 in punitive damages.  The judges and attorneys crafted this masterpiece, and it has 
survived two separate motions to vacate under Code of Civil Procedure section 473(d).  The 
second went all the way to the State Supreme Court.  Nonetheless, the case is a crime in 
progress, and proven so through the documents, record and the law. 
 
Problem: No attorney to go litigate. 

 
2) County Line Holdings, LLC v. Gonzalez, et al. 

(A Quiet Title case on the Malibu Property) 
Superior Court Case Number: 56-2013-00444799-CU-OR-VTA  

http://www.ventura.courts.ca.gov/via/CaseInformationSummary.aspx?CaseNo=56-2013-
00444799-CU-OR-VTA 

John C. Torjesen and his law firm, Torjesen & Associates, PC, (hereinafter, together known as 
“Torjesen”) were one of the attorneys and firms representing Harry Mansdorf against Michele 
Giacomazza.  Giacomazza had transferred title to Mr. Mansdorf’s Beverly Hills mansion and 
approximately 1,291 acres of unimproved land on the Los Angeles/Ventura county line border to 
his own company out of Mr. Mansdorf’s family trust, the Mansdorf Family Revocable Trust, 

http://www.ventura.courts.ca.gov/via/CaseInformationSummary.aspx?CaseNo=56-2013-00444799-CU-OR-VTA
http://www.ventura.courts.ca.gov/via/CaseInformationSummary.aspx?CaseNo=56-2013-00444799-CU-OR-VTA
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dated August 31, 1967, (“MFRT”).  This includes almost 3 lineal miles of beach, (meaning both 
sides of Pacific Coast Highway). 
 
Torjesen was promised a $2 million “bonus” if successful in quieting title to the properties. 
After the court entered a 12 page statement of decision heavily in Mr. Mansdorf’s favor, 
Torjesen insisted upon a money judgment against Giacomazza whilst Mr. Mansdorf simply 
wanted the property back.  It was worth a lot of millions, it was free and clear, and Mr. Mansdorf 
could easily take a loan against the property and live out his life.  Mr. Mansdorf’s other attorneys 
sought judgment to get the property and Torjesen dismissed the judgment.  Torjesen was fired 
for this, and the court in Giacomazza then entered judgment in favor of Mr. Mansdorf in his 
capacity as Trustee of the MFRT.  Right after judgment, Torjesen sued Mr. Mansdorf both 
individually and in his capacity of the MFRT to collect on his “conditional” $2 Million Dollar 
“Bonus,” placing a “lis pendens” on the property, effectively preventing Mr. Mansdorf from 
accessing the value.  Ultimately, Torjesen prevailed at the arbitration proceeding, and later 
obtaining a “conditional” judgment, with no opposition, (he defaulted Mr. Mansdorf out while 
arbitration was pending). 
 
The caption of the conditional judgment properly referenced Mr. Mansdorf in both capacities, 
but the language of the judgment stated Harry Mansdorf as judgment debtor 1 and “MFRT” as 
judgment debtor 2.  This is wrong because a trust literally cannot be a judgment debtor in 
California because a trust is merely an agreement on paper and only a “person” can be a 
judgment debtor under California law.  Portico Management v. Harrison (2011) 202 Cal. App. 
4th 464, 474-475.  The judgment is either void (as completely unenforceable under California 
law), or a scrivner’s error in its description of the “MFRT” as debtor 2.  The second judgment 
debtor is Harry Mansdorf, Trustee of the MFRT. 
 
Torjesen recorded an abstract of judgment in the Ventura County Recorder’s Office in 2012, 
then sought a writ of execution for the judgment debtors’ interest in approximately 1,291 acres of 
vacant land, identified only by two cross streets and 34 Assessor’s Parcel Numbers – no metes 
and bounds legal descriptions. 
 
The writ was rejected due to other procedure defects, so Torjesen could not obtain an execution 
lien (levy) prior to Mr. Mansdorf’s death.  Mr. Mansdorf then died on August 27, 2012.   
 
In this circumstance, (no execution lien prior to death of the judgment debtor), both California 
Probate Code section 19300 and California Code of Civil Procedure section 686.020 mandated 
Torjesen cease using the Enforcement of Judgments law, (“EJL”) to enforce the judgment, and to 
use only the Probate Code.   
 
More fundamental than that, the reason these codes require all to cease using the EJL is because 
the judgment creditor holds a judgment only against the judgment debtor, and can only cause the 
levy of the judgment debtor’s interest in real property under the EJL.  After death, no interest 
exists in a judgment debtor, because the “vesting” of real property rights to either a spouse, 
beneficiary, heir at will, heir at law or even escheating to the State, occurs at the moment of 
death.  One moment after the death of the judgment debtor, there is and could be NO INTEREST 
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in existence of the judgment debtor in any real property for the sheriff to levy and later pass to a 
purchaser at a sale with a sheriff’s deed. 
 
Nonetheless, Torjesen ignored the law, continued in obtaining another writ of execution on 
September 17, 2012, and continued by directing the sheriff record this writ and a notice of levy 
(thus, forming the “execution lien” (also known as the “levy) on October 11, 2012 – 42 days 
after Harry Mansdorf died. 
 
Torjesen contended in recent pleadings that he held a judgment against “the trust” and “the trust” 
never died so he could continue enforcing his judgment using the Enforcement of Judgments law 
– a frivolous position unsupported by any authority. 
 
Torjesen and another individual Howard Weinberg were the only two people bidding at the sale.  
Both Torjesen and Weinberg are attorneys, have a common client who is also a principle in the 
company Weinberg was acting for at the sale, (County Line Holdings, LLC), and Weinberg’s 
deposition testimony described his relationship with Torjesen and interactions relating to the 
1,291 acres. 
 
At deposition, Weinberg testified that while walking into the sale, he informed Torjesen he 
would not bid more than $500,000. 
 
At deposition, Torjesen stated when Weinberg bid $500,000, Torjesen had the decision to bid 
$500,001 or let Weinberg take it – and he let Weinberg take it. 
 
At deposition, Weinberg testified that after the sale, he went to the sheriff’s department to pick 
up his deed, saw there were no “legal descriptions” on the deed, and because he believed he 
could not record the deed without legal descriptions, he testified that he asked the uniformed 
officer behind the counter if it was ok to put the legal descriptions from his preliminary title 
report onto the sheriff’s deed so he could record it, and the uniformed officer replied, “that’s fine 
with us.” 
 
At deposition, Ventura County Sheriff’s Officer Gabby Canales testified that allowing a 
purchaser to add legal descriptions to a sheriff’s deed after it is issued is something they do not 
and would not do. 
 
Off record, Ventura County Sheriff’s Officer Debrah Aldrich stated there are no uniformed 
officers in the location Weinberg claimed a uniformed officer gave him permission to add his 
legal descriptions to the issued sheriff’s deed. 
 
The complete lack of legal descriptions, (which obviously rendered the deed “unrecordable”), 
was how the sale was advertised to the public – simply the cross streets and 34 parcel numbers – 
no actual legal descriptions.  In this manner, it is believed Weinberg & Torjesen chilled the 
bidding process, shying away other potential bidders with no legal descriptions advertised or 
available from the sheriff. 
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Weinberg’s company, County Line Holdings, LLC, then filed a complaint for quiet title, 
cancellation of instruments, declaratory and injunctive relief, against Jaime Gonzalez, 
individually, McClanahan and others, using the recorded sheriff’s deed as the legal basis.  
Weinberg signed the verification page for the verified complaint. 
 
Through counsel, Jaime Gonzalez, as Trustee of the MFRT, filed a complaint in intervention in 
the County Line quiet title case, claiming the levy, sale and deed were “void” because they 
existed in violation of Probate Code 19300.  Further, the deed was void because of Weinberg 
forged it  Further, the judgment and deed were ineffective to convey “trust” property as Torjesen 
and County Line alleged.  Finally, that Jaime as Trustee was entitled to cancel the deed on behalf 
of the trust beneficiaries under “equitable redemption” because of the grossly unfair purchase 
price and the unfair conduct of Weinberg/County Line. 
 
A motion for summary adjudication on the Probate Code section 19300 issue was brought, and 
the Court denied the motion, resting upon the 90 day absolute rule of California Code of Civil 
Procedure section 786.090, (90 days after the sale of property under chapter 786.010, et seq., the 
sale is “absolute” and cannot be set aside for any reason.) 
 
Now a motion for judgment on the pleadings has been drafted proving County Line holds an 
“empty bag” – they only obtained the judgment debtor’s rights, title and interests, and further, 
the judgment debtor’s interest that passed at the sale or via the deed could only be the interests 
that existed at the time of levy – NONE.  Why?  Because Mr. Mansdorf died 42 days prior to the 
levy and his interests either vested in his Trust Beneficiaries, his surviving spouse, his surviving 
joint tenant, his heirs at will, his heirs at law, or if none of these are determined accurate, then the 
State of California. 
 
Under no legal theory can County Line Holdings, LLC, quiet title to the 1,291 acres of property 
in Malibu.  A motion for judgment on the pleadings is COMPLETE and ready to be filed 
TODAY.   
 
Problem: no attorney. 
 

• Code of Civil Procedure section 701.640 (execution sale purchaser only acquires 
judgment debtor’s interest.) 
 

• Frink v. Roe (1886) 70 Cal. 296, 298, [11 P. 820], (The purchaser at an execution sale 
acquires the interest of the judgment debtor and nothing more.) 
 

• Noble v. Beach (1942) 21 Cal.2d 91, 94 [130 P.2d 426]. (sale by sheriff has same force 
and effect as a conveyance by judgment debtor in the form of a quitclaim deed at date of 
sale.) 
 

• (Code Civ. Proc. § 697.710) (“[a] levy on property under a writ of execution creates an 
execution lien on the property from the time of levy. . .”) 
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• A judgment creditor who attempts to levy against the property of a debtor in satisfaction 
of his debt obtains a lien only upon the debtor's interest.  Where no actual interest is 
shown, the attaching creditor gets nothing. (Henry v. General Forming, Ltd. (1948) 33 
Cal.2d 223, 225-226, [200 P.2d 785], emphasis added). 
 

• “[t]he title does not fail by reason of any irregularity in the sale, but because the Sheriff 
had in fact no execution.” (Smith v. Reed (1877) 52 Cal. 345, 346) 
 

• It is not whether the sale can be set aside; rather, the fact is, the sale never occurred, and a 
void sale [of nothing] accomplishes nothing. (Stanley v. Westover (1928), 93 Cal. App. 
97, 101 [269 Pac. 468]. 
 

• Harvey v. Whyte (1958) 158 Cal.App.2d 685 [323 P.2d 162] (no cause of action existed 
because the purchaser could not obtain an interest in the property since the debtor had no 
interest in the property) 

 
3) Gonzalez v. Ventura County Superior Court 

Appellate Court Case No. B263314 (superior court no. 56-2013-00444799-CU-OR-VTA)   
(A petition for writ of mandate in the Quiet Title case above regarding the superior court’s ruling 
on Gonzalez’ motion for summary adjudication on the Probate Code section 19300 issue (levy 
after death means the levy, sale and quiet title case are all “void”.)  Simply put, the trial court’s 
decision that the 90 day absolute rule of Code of Civil Procedure section 701.680 “controlled” 
over Probate Code section 19300, and overruled Stanley v. Westover, (defining a sheriff’s deed 
where the sheriff’s sale was based upon an execution lien (sheriff’s levy) that occurred “after” 
the death of the judgment debtor as a nullity because of the levy of “nothing”.) 
 
As a general rule, the provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure are inapplicable to proceedings 
only when a special rule is provided in the Probate Code.  Swaithes v. Superior Court, (1989) 
212 Cal. App.3d 1082, 1089, [261 Cal. Rptr. 41].) 
 
The Enforcement of Judgments Law was adopted in 1982, and took effect July 1, 1983. The same 
is codified in Code of Civil Procedure section 680.010 through Section 724.260.  It is a 
comprehensive statutory scheme governing enforcement of civil judgments in California. 
In 1991 the Legislature added provisions to the Probate Code for the payment of claims, debts 
and expenses from the revocable trusts of deceased settlors who died on or after January 1, 1992. 
(Prob. Code §§ 19000 et seq., 19012, subd. (a).) 
 
The trial Court is proven wrong it its application of the Enforcement of Judgments Law over the 
Probate Code in this instance by the Legislatively crafted language in the Enforcement of 
Judgments Law itself, expressly submitting the Enforcement of Judgments Law to any other 
controlling law or statute.   
 
Secondarily, the Probate Code is more recent and more specific regarding the matters herein, 
thus governing over and above the Code of Civil Procedure. See, e.g., In re Estate of Neilson 
(1962) 57 Cal.2d 733, 744, [371 P.2d 745; 22 Cal. Rptr. 1]); (Code Civ. Proc., § 1033 

http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=2&doc_id=2105909&doc_no=B263314&search=party&start=1&query_partyLastNameOrOrg=gonzalez&query_partyFirstName=jaime&query_partyMiddleName=dejesus
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inconsistent with Prob. Code, § 1232); In re Estate of Wallace (1977) 74 Cal.App.3d 196, 
201[141 Cal. Rptr. 426]; Code Civ. Proc., § 1003 inconsistent with Prob. Code, § 1233.) 
 
Collection Bureau of San Jose v. Rumsey (2000) 24 Cal. 4th 301, 310-11, [6 P. 3d 713; 99 Cal. 
Rptr. 2d 792], (any conflict between the Family Law Code and the Probate Code, the Probate 
Code took precedence because it was both more recent and more specific.) 
 
Neiman Marcus v. Tait, (1995) 33 Cal.App.4th 271, 274, [39 Cal. Rptr. 2d 143] “Nothing in those 
statutes authorizes Neiman Marcus to ignore the requirement of section 709.030 that it proceed 
in the court in which the conservatorship is pending.” 
 

 
3a) Gonzalez v. Los Angeles County Superior Court 

(Petition for Writ of Mandate on the trial court’s denial of Gonzalez’s motion to vacate a void 
order) 

COA Case No. B262977 
Superior Court Case No. (BC425880) 

(The petition for writ of mandate filed on March 26, 2015, has been read and considered and is 
denied on the ground petitioner has not stated facts or legal authorities sufficient to demonstrate 
entitlement to extraordinary relief. Epstein-Manella.) 
 

3b) Gonzalez v. Los Angeles County Superior Court 
Petition for Review to the CA Supreme Court after the court of appeals loss- Pending 

Supreme Court Case No.S225942 GONZALEZ v. S.C. (TORJESEN) 
Petition for Writ of Mandate on the trial court’s denial of Gonzalez’s motion to vacate a void 
order.  The judgment debtor, Harry Mansdorf, died prior to Torjesen obtaining an execution lien.  
Torjesen ignored Probate Code and Code of Civil Procedure, continuing on to seek a writ of 
execution and have the sheriff record the writ and notice of lien (forming the levy).  Through bad 
advice of an attorney who is now being sued for malpractice, Jaime Gonzalez, individually, filed 
a “Third Party Claim” to prevent Torjesen from moving forward on the sale.  Ultimately, 
Torjesen’s petition to invalidate Gonzalez’s Third Party Claim was granted.  Just under two 
years later, Gonzalez moved to vacate the 2013 Order as “void” because the trial court lacked the 
jurisdiction to even entertain the Third Party Claim process, so the ensuing “order” was therefore 
“void”. 
 
THE COURT: Let me just indicate that the court signed an order back on April 15, 2013.  And 
the matter was resolved at that time.  And I granted the petition to invalidate the third-party 
claim.  There is a signed order so indicating.  There’s thorough explanation of the court’s 
reasoning in its tentative ruling of April 9, 2013.  You’re here almost two years later.  Denied. 
 
MR. FREELY:  Your Honor.  May I speak? 
 
THE COURT: I’ve read your papers. I’m not persuaded. 
 
(Transcript of Proceedings, page 2: 18-28.)  The superior court statements intoning that 
Petitioner was somehow out of time to file this motion are meritless and have no basis in the law. 

http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=2&doc_id=2104391&doc_no=B262977&search=party&start=1&query_partyLastNameOrOrg=gonzalez&query_partyFirstName=jaime&query_partyMiddleName=dejesus
http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=0&doc_id=2106827&doc_no=S225942
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Motions to vacate void judgments may be made at any time after judgment. (County of Ventura 
v. Tillett, (1982) 133 Cal. App. 3d 105, 110). 
 
“[A] void judgment, order or decree may be attacked at any time or in any court, either directly 
or collaterally” - The law is well-settled that a void order or judgment is void even before 
reversal.  (Vallely v Northern Fire & Marine Ins. Co., supra, 254 U.S. 348, 41 S.Ct. 116). 
“[A] court may set aside a void order at any time. An appeal will not prevent the court from at 
any time lopping off what has been termed a dead limb on the judicial tree -- a void order.” 
(MacMillan Petroleum Corp. v. Griffin (1950) 99 Cal. App. 2d 523, 533, [222 P.2d 69]; accord: 
People v. West Coast Shows, Inc. (1970) 10 Cal. App. 3d 462, 467, [89 Cal. Rptr. 290]; 
Svistunoff v. Svistunoff (1952) 108 Cal. App. 2d 638, 641-642, [239 P.2d 650]; 6 Witkin, Cal. 
Procedure (2d ed. 1971) Appeal, § 7, pp. 4024-4025.) 
 
““These judgment lien statutes are subject to strict construction because they are purely the 
creation of the Legislature. Thus, where a statute requires a court to exercise its jurisdiction in a 
particular manner, follow a particular procedure, or be subject to certain limitations, an act 
beyond those limits is in excess of its jurisdiction and void.” (Casa Eva I Homeowners Assn. v. 
Ani Construction & Tile, (2005) 134 Cal. App. 4th 771,778-779 [36 Cal. Rptr. 3d 401]) 
(Citations omitted). 
 
As defined by the United States Supreme Court: “Courts are constituted by authority and they 
cannot go beyond that power delegated to them.  If they act beyond that authority, and certainly 
in contravention of it, their judgments and orders are regarded as nullities. They are not voidable, 
but simply void, and this even prior to reversal. . . . A court cannot confer jurisdiction where 
none existed and cannot make a void proceeding valid.” (Vallely v. Northern Fire& Marine Ins., 
Co.,(1920) 254 U.S. 348, 353-354, [41 S.Ct. 116, 65 L.Ed. 297]), (citing Old Wayne Mut. L. 
Assoc. v McDonough, (1907) 204 U.S. 8, [27 S.Ct. 236, 51 L.Ed. 345]). 
 
Higgins v. Coyne, (1946) 75 Cal.App.2d 69, 70; [170 P.2d 25] and Haase v. Lamia, (1964) 229 
Cal. App. 2d 654, 658; [40 Cal. Rptr. 518]. (“The law is well settled that if a court is wanting in 
jurisdiction to hear and determine an action it may not assume to exercise such jurisdiction, even 
though the parties consent thereto and actively participate in the trial.”) 
 
Michel v. Williams (1936) 13 Cal.App.2d 198, 200, [56 P.2d 546](“Proceedings outside the 
authority of the court or in violation of statutory provisions are . . .  utterly void”.) 
 
Abelleira v. District Court of App., Third Dist. (1941) 17 Cal.2d 280, 291, [109 P.2d 942] (Acts 
that exceed the defined power of a court in any instance, whether that power be defined by 
constitutional provision, express statutory declaration, or rules developed by the courts and 
followed under the doctrine of stare decisis, are in excess of jurisdiction.) 
 
King v. Mortimer, (1951) 37 Cal. 2d 430, 434; [233 P.2d 4] (“when a statute prohibits or attaches 
a penalty to the doing of an act, the act is void.”) (Citations omitted.) 
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3c) Gonzalez v. Los Angeles County Superior Court 
Also, a direct appeal to the Court of Appeals has been taken, (an order denying a motion to 

vacate a void order is itself, an appealable order.  No showing of extraordinary relief is required 
on direct appeal.  That should garner a different result).  Opening Brief is in progress. 
COA Case No. B263377 (BC425880)  Torgensen v. Mansdorf 

THE COURT: Let me just indicate that the court signed an order back on April 15, 2013.  And 
the matter was resolved at that time.  And I granted the petition to invalidate the third-party 
claim.  There is a signed order so indicating.  There’s thorough explanation of the court’s 
reasoning in its tentative ruling of April 9, 2013.  You’re here almost two years later.  Denied. 
 
MR. FREELY:  Your Honor.  May I speak? 
 
THE COURT: I’ve read your papers. I’m not persuaded. 
 
(Transcript of Proceedings, page 2: 18-28.)  The superior court statements intoning that 
Petitioner was somehow out of time to file this motion are meritless and have no basis in the law. 
 
Motions to vacate void judgments may be made at any time after judgment. (County of Ventura 
v. Tillett, (1982) 133 Cal. App. 3d 105, 110). 
 
“[A] void judgment, order or decree may be attacked at any time or in any court, either directly 
or collaterally” - The law is well-settled that a void order or judgment is void even before 
reversal.  (Vallely v Northern Fire & Marine Ins. Co., supra, 254 U.S. 348, 41 S.Ct. 116). 
“[A] court may set aside a void order at any time. An appeal will not prevent the court from at 
any time lopping off what has been termed a dead limb on the judicial tree -- a void order.” 
(MacMillan Petroleum Corp. v. Griffin (1950) 99 Cal. App. 2d 523, 533, [222 P.2d 69]; accord: 
People v. West Coast Shows, Inc. (1970) 10 Cal. App. 3d 462, 467, [89 Cal. Rptr. 290]; 
Svistunoff v. Svistunoff (1952) 108 Cal. App. 2d 638, 641-642, [239 P.2d 650]; 6 Witkin, Cal. 
Procedure (2d ed. 1971) Appeal, § 7, pp. 4024-4025.) 
 
““These judgment lien statutes are subject to strict construction because they are purely the 
creation of the Legislature. Thus, where a statute requires a court to exercise its jurisdiction in a 
particular manner, follow a particular procedure, or be subject to certain limitations, an act 
beyond those limits is in excess of its jurisdiction and void.” (Casa Eva I Homeowners Assn. v. 
Ani Construction & Tile, (2005) 134 Cal. App. 4th 771,778-779 [36 Cal. Rptr. 3d 401]) 
(Citations omitted). 
 
As defined by the United States Supreme Court: “Courts are constituted by authority and they 
cannot go beyond that power delegated to them.  If they act beyond that authority, and certainly 
in contravention of it, their judgments and orders are regarded as nullities. They are not voidable, 
but simply void, and this even prior to reversal. . . . A court cannot confer jurisdiction where 
none existed and cannot make a void proceeding valid.” (Vallely v. Northern Fire& Marine Ins., 
Co.,(1920) 254 U.S. 348, 353-354, [41 S.Ct. 116, 65 L.Ed. 297]), (citing Old Wayne Mut. L. 
Assoc. v McDonough, (1907) 204 U.S. 8, [27 S.Ct. 236, 51 L.Ed. 345]). 
 

http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=2&doc_id=2106126&doc_no=B263377&search=party&start=1&query_partyLastNameOrOrg=gonzalez&query_partyFirstName=jaime&query_partyMiddleName=dejesus
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Higgins v. Coyne, (1946) 75 Cal.App.2d 69, 70; [170 P.2d 25] and Haase v. Lamia, (1964) 229 
Cal. App. 2d 654, 658; [40 Cal. Rptr. 518]. (“The law is well settled that if a court is wanting in 
jurisdiction to hear and determine an action it may not assume to exercise such jurisdiction, even 
though the parties consent thereto and actively participate in the trial.”) 
 
Michel v. Williams (1936) 13 Cal.App.2d 198, 200, [56 P.2d 546](“Proceedings outside the 
authority of the court or in violation of statutory provisions are . . .  utterly void”.) 
 
Abelleira v. District Court of App., Third Dist. (1941) 17 Cal.2d 280, 291, [109 P.2d 942] (Acts 
that exceed the defined power of a court in any instance, whether that power be defined by 
constitutional provision, express statutory declaration, or rules developed by the courts and 
followed under the doctrine of stare decisis, are in excess of jurisdiction.) 
 
King v. Mortimer, (1951) 37 Cal. 2d 430, 434; [233 P.2d 4] (“when a statute prohibits or attaches 
a penalty to the doing of an act, the act is void.”) (Citations omitted.) 
 

4) Gonzalez & Mansdorf v. Alta Standard One, LLC 
Appeal from the unlawful detainer loss on the Beverly Hills home. 

Superior Court Case Numbers 13U00769/13R00769 (loss) 
Superior Court Appellate Division Case No. BV030652 (loss) 

Appellate Court Case No. B261337  (Pending) 
April of 2008, McClanahan’s attorneys recorded an abstract of her bogus $12 million dollar 
judgment.  June of 2008, Mr. Mansdorf executed a joint tenancy grant deed, (“JTGD”), moving 
title to the Beverly Hills home and the 1,291 acres in Malibu from Harry Mansdorf as Trustee of 
the MFRT to Mr. Mansdorf and Gonzalez individually, in joint tenancy, with rights of 
survivorship. 
 
California law requires a debtor have rights in collateral for security interest to attach1, 
but between October 28, 20042 and January 6, 20103, no record interests of Harold 
Mansdorf existed in the Beverly Hills home which the April 2008 Abstract could attach 
to - title was transferred in 2004 via grant deed from Harry as Trustee at the behest of 
Giacomazza. 
 
Mr. Mansdorf as Trustee of the MFRT did not obtain title to the Beverly Hills home until 
Judge Palmer’s court order in the Giacomazza case, on January 6, 2010. Compare 
Johnson v. E-Z Ins. Brokerage, Inc., (2009) 175 Cal. App. 4th 86, 95: (citing In re Cady 
(Bankr. 9th Cir. 2001) 266 B.R. 172, 182, affd. (9th Cir. 2003) 315 F.3d 1121 (Cady) 
 

                                                 
1 Commercial Code section 9203(1)(c) and Call v. Thunderbird Mortgage Co. (1962) 58 
Cal.2d 542, 548 (requiring a debtor to have rights in collateral for security interest to 
attach).  (AOB 11, ¶6-12). 
2 (AOB 2, ¶2, (citing 2 CT 230:10-11; 2 CT 415:22-24; 3 CT 497:17-24; 3 CT 503-509). 
3 (AOB 2, ¶4, (citing 2 CT 415:24-27; 2 CT 442-447). 
 

http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=2&doc_id=2097795&doc_no=B261337&search=party&start=1&query_partyLastNameOrOrg=gonzalez&query_partyFirstName=jaime&query_partyMiddleName=dejesus
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At the moment of Judge Palmer’s ruling, Mr. Mansdorf’s individual, joint tenancy rights 
took effect.  AT that same moment, McClanahan’s abstract attached to Mr. Mansdorf’s 
“after-acquired” title.  At that same moment, Gonzalez’s joint tenancy and survivorship 
rights attached, (as “simultaneous attachment” is a fundamental precept of joint tenancy 
law).  

 
The Judicially Ordered Title in the name of Harry as Trustee took effect the 
moment of judgment.  Brown v. Superior Court (1925) 70 Cal.App. 732, 735 [The 
rendition of a judgment is a judicial act, and a judgment thus has full force and 
effect once it has been rendered, regardless of whether it has been entered.]  

 
Simultaneously, the transfer of rights from Harry as Trustee to Mansdorf and 
Appellant Gonzales individually, in joint tenancy became effective. See Johnson 
v. E-Z Ins. Brokerage, Inc., (2009) 175 Cal. App. 4th 86, 95, (citing Civil Code 
section 1106) [Under the doctrine of after-acquired title, “[w]here a person 
purports by proper instrument to grant real property in fee simple, and 
subsequently acquires any title, or claim of title thereto, the same passes by 
operation of law to the grantee, or his successors”]); Civil Code section 1110, “An 
instrument purporting to be a grant of real property, to take effect upon condition 
precedent, passes the estate upon the performance of the condition;” see also, 4A 
Powell on Real Property (rev. ed. 1989) ¶ 615[1], p. 51-52; (to create a joint 
tenancy a conveyance must convey “to two or more persons at the same time the 
same title to the same interest with the same right of possession.”); see also, Civil 
Code section 683) 

 
Simultaneously, McClanahan’s judgment lien attached to Mansdorf’s interest per 
Code of Civil Procedure section 697.340(b): “If any interest in real property in the 
county on which a judgment lien could be created under subdivision (a) is 
acquired after the judgment lien was created, the judgment lien attaches to such 
interest at the time it is acquired.” 
 
With these background facts, we return to the story. 
 
McClanahan’s counsel took the $12 million default judgment and sought the sale of Mr. 
Mansdorf’s Beverly Hills home to satisfy the judgment.  At the order for sale, McClanahan’s 
attorneys argued the Beverly Hills home was held in the MFRT.  Torjesen filed a Third Party 
Claim, submitting the joint tenancy grant deed Mr. Mansdorf had executed back in 2008, giving 
the property to Mr. Mansdorf individually and Gonzalez individually, in joint tenancy with rights 
of survivorship.  No one submitted a copy of the trust document for the MFRT.   
 
The court ordered the sale of “the property” to satisfy the judgment. 
 
The court did not specify “what” interests of Mr. Mansdorf in the MFRT that he was reaching, 
(e.g., settlor, trustee, beneficiary, etc.), it simply ordered “the property” sold. 
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When hearing dueling motions for summary judgment, the trial court engaged in a 
complex, but fatally flawed title analysis, deciding, wiping-out, then awarding title to a 
multimillion-dollar home in an unlawful detainer case brought by an execution sale 
purchaser under the rubric of Code of Civil Procedure section 1161a(b)(1), further 
determining Gonzalez took his joint tenancy rights “subject to” McClanahan’s abstract, 
and determining the court in the order for sale hearing “reached” into the MFRT and 
ordered the sale based upon some unspecified interests because that’s just what had to 
have happened. 
 
In its legislatively disallowed adjudication of title to this multi-million dollar property, 
the trial court: 

• unilaterally decided a contested issue of fact during the summary judgment 
hearing – something condemned in practice and by all authorities on the 
subject; 

 
• failed to recognize the after-acquired title and simultaneous attachment 

facts, and because of these failures, incorrectly determined Gonzalez took 
his rights “subject to” the Judgment creditor’s abstract;  

 
• determined Gonzalez’s title was “wiped out” by the sale while awarding 

Respondent title and possession, and ignored established joint tenancy law. 
 
On appeal to the appellate division of the Superior Court, they refused to consider the 
trial court’s actions of deciding a contested issue of fact during the summary judgment 
hearing, claiming the record did not support this argument.  They omitted the after-
acquired title and simultaneous facts and arguments from its consideration and failed to 
apply established joint tenancy law, just as the trial court.  To do so, they repeatedly 
opined “the property” was sold at the execution sale whilst statute allows only “the 
judgment debtor’s interest” to be sold.  Finally, they denied the subject matter jurisdiction 
challenge by finding no prejudice resulted, despite objection by both Respondent and 
Appellant. 
 
Gonzalez moved for modification of the ruling and certification for transfer.  The opinion 
was modified in form but not substance, and the request for certification for transfer was 
denied. 
 
Gonzalez petitioned for transfer to the Court of Appeals. 
 
The Court of appeals granted the petition for transfer to settle an important question of 
law and provide for uniformity of decision, further calling for full briefing from both 
parties. 
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As of April 9, 2015, all briefing is complete and we are simply awaiting an oral argument 
date. 

 
5) Gonzalez v. Alta Standard One, LLC 

Appeal from the defamation of title case loss on the Beverly Hills home 
Superior Court Case No. BC506777 (loss) 

Appellate Court Case No. B257876 (Pending) 
Same background facts as the Unlawful Detainer case, but here Gonzalez sued Alta Standard 
One for Defamation of Title for its actions of recording the sheriff’s deed.  Alta demurred, 
claiming res judicata and collateral estoppel based upon the SC119964 case, (a complaint for 
quiet title by Gonzalez against Alta which Gonzalez dismissed without prejudice after Alta filed 
a demurrer but prior to any hearing on the demurrer or any tentative ruling.)  Alta’s attorneys 
sent a “notice of ruling” claiming the court sustained the demurrer based upon the res judicata 
effect of three cases, not one: SC119964, BC363659 (the McClanahan case) and BC425880 (the 
Torjesen case).  The minute order from the court only references SC119964. 
 
The opening appeal brief focused on the trial court’s minute order. 
 
The response brief argued the appeals court could affirm the trial court’s ruling on any ground 
raised in the demurrer, not just the one the court ruled upon.  Further, all the other grounds in the 
demurrer were winners.  They had absolutely no argument against the fact the trial court ruling 
of res judicata based upon the SC119964 case was a gross abuse of discretion requiring 
immediate reversal. 
 
The reply addressed all the issues in the demurrer in reply to Alta’s response. 
Oral argument has not been set yet. 
 

6) The Estate of Harry Mansdorf 
Case No. BP146138 – Jaime and Linda are the Executors (Pending) 

http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx? 
McClanahan, former attorney Kevin MacNamara, and former firm Quinn, Emmanuel, Urqhart 
and Sullivan all submitted claims. McClanahan around $14 million; MacNamara around $28,000 
and Quinn-Emmanuel around $1.7 Million. 
 
Embree v. Embree, (2004) 125 Cal.App.4th 487 [22 Cal.Rptr.3d 782] 
The trial court held that Joanne's attempt to enforce her claim for a lifetime annuity against the 
beneficiaries of Alvin's living trust was time-barred. We affirm. 
 
Valentine v. Read (1996) 50 Cal.App.4th 787, 792-793, 57 Cal.Rptr.2d 836 [in absence of 
probate or trust claims proceeding, Prob.Code, § 19400 authorizes judgment creditor to pursue 
claim against distributees of decedent's revocable living trust within one year of settlor's death].)  
 
If the creditor fails to bring a claim against the beneficiaries of the decedent judgment debtor's 
revocable living trust within one year of the decedent's death, property distributed to the 
beneficiaries under the terms of the decedent's revocable living trust is protected and cannot be 
used to satisfy the creditor's judgment.  

http://appellatecases.courtinfo.ca.gov/search/case/mainCaseScreen.cfm?dist=2&doc_id=2083657&doc_no=B257876
http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx
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Levine v. Levine (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 1256, 1263-1265, 126 Cal.Rptr.2d 255 [in absence of 
probate or trust claims proceeding, appellant's claim against beneficiaries of debtor's revocable 
living trust is barred because action was not brought within one year of decedent debtor's death];  
 
Dawes v. Rich (1997) 60 Cal.App.4th 24, 33, 70 Cal.Rptr.2d 72 [judgment creditor's claim 
against debtor's surviving spouse time-barred under § 366.2 because not brought against spouse 
within one year of decedent's death]. 
 
Probate Code section 366.3, subdivision (a), adopted by the Legislature in 2000, provides, "If a 
person has a claim which arises from a promise or agreement with a decedent to distribution 
from an estate or trust or under other instrument, whether the promise or agreement was made 
orally or in writing, an action to enforce the claim to distribution may be commenced within one 
year after the date of death, and the limitations period that would have been applicable does not 
apply. 
 
Although section 366.3's use of "may," as opposed to "shall" or "must," arguably creates some 
ambiguity as to whether it establishes a true one-year limitations period for breach of a covenant-
to-will agreement, any possible ambiguity is eliminated by examination of the legislative history 
of the section: "Current law has an uncertain statute of limitations in regard to equitable and 
contractual claims to distribution of estates. In some cases, the statute may run three years from 
discovery of the action or four years under a contract theory. Section 1 of the bill [enacting 
section 366.3] establishes a one-year statute of limitations for the enforcement of these claims, 
consistent with the current limitations period for claims against a decedent. (See Code of Civil 
Procedure section 366.2)." (Assem. Com. on Judiciary, com. on Assem. Bill No. 1491 (1999-
2000 Reg. Sess.) Jan. 11, 2000.) Section 366.3 is applicable to all persons (including Alvin) 
dying after January 1, 2001. (§ 366.3, subd. (c).) 
 

7) In re the Mansdorf Family Revocable Trust, dated August 31, 1967 
Case No. BP 147495 

(abated for the county line quiet title case) 
http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx? 
The estate is opened and we can file 850 petitions on trust property at will.  The 850 filed on the 
1,291 acres was “abated” pending the outcome of the Ventura County Quiet Title Case with 
County Line Holdings.   
McClanahan is attempting to sell the Malibu property using Probate Code 93 
 
Embree v. Embree, (2004) 125 Cal.App.4th 487 [22 Cal.Rptr.3d 782] 
The trial court held that Joanne's attempt to enforce her claim for a lifetime annuity against the 
beneficiaries of Alvin's living trust was time-barred. We affirm. 
 
Valentine v. Read (1996) 50 Cal.App.4th 787, 792-793, 57 Cal.Rptr.2d 836 [in absence of 
probate or trust claims proceeding, Prob.Code, § 19400 authorizes judgment creditor to pursue 
claim against distributees of decedent's revocable living trust within one year of settlor's death].)  
 

http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx
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If the creditor fails to bring a claim against the beneficiaries of the decedent judgment debtor's 
revocable living trust within one year of the decedent's death, property distributed to the 
beneficiaries under the terms of the decedent's revocable living trust is protected and cannot be 
used to satisfy the creditor's judgment.  
 
Levine v. Levine (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 1256, 1263-1265, 126 Cal.Rptr.2d 255 [in absence of 
probate or trust claims proceeding, appellant's claim against beneficiaries of debtor's revocable 
living trust is barred because action was not brought within one year of decedent debtor's death];  
 
Dawes v. Rich (1997) 60 Cal.App.4th 24, 33, 70 Cal.Rptr.2d 72 [judgment creditor's claim 
against debtor's surviving spouse time-barred under § 366.2 because not brought against spouse 
within one year of decedent's death]. 
 
Probate Code section 366.3, subdivision (a), adopted by the Legislature in 2000, provides, "If a 
person has a claim which arises from a promise or agreement with a decedent to distribution 
from an estate or trust or under other instrument, whether the promise or agreement was made 
orally or in writing, an action to enforce the claim to distribution may be commenced within one 
year after the date of death, and the limitations period that would have been applicable does not 
apply. 
 
Although section 366.3's use of "may," as opposed to "shall" or "must," arguably creates some 
ambiguity as to whether it establishes a true one-year limitations period for breach of a covenant-
to-will agreement, any possible ambiguity is eliminated by examination of the legislative history 
of the section: "Current law has an uncertain statute of limitations in regard to equitable and 
contractual claims to distribution of estates. In some cases, the statute may run three years from 
discovery of the action or four years under a contract theory. Section 1 of the bill [enacting 
section 366.3] establishes a one-year statute of limitations for the enforcement of these claims, 
consistent with the current limitations period for claims against a decedent. (See Code of Civil 
Procedure section 366.2)." (Assem. Com. on Judiciary, com. on Assem. Bill No. 1491 (1999-
2000 Reg. Sess.) Jan. 11, 2000.) Section 366.3 is applicable to all persons (including Alvin) 
dying after January 1, 2001. (§ 366.3, subd. (c).) 
 

8) Kevin MacNamara v. Gonzalez and Mansdorf 
Case No. BC570965 (Pending) 

Pending.  Demurrers are in progress, as is a cross complaint. 
The case is constitutes elder abuse of Linda Mansdorf, an abuse of process and malicious 
prosecution by the Mansdorf’s former attorney, Kevin MacNamara. 
http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx? 
MacNamara loses under the one year statute of limitations of Probate Code section 366.2 
Stoltenberg v. Newman (2009) 179 Cal.App.4th 287, 295. 
Wagner v. Wagner, supra, 162 Cal.App.4th at p. 256; Bradley v. Breen (1999) 73 Cal.App.4th 
798, 800. 
The fact  MacNamara’s claims could also be asserted against Harry Mansdorf’s agents, Linda 
Mansdorf and Jaime Gonzalez, does not take this outside of a claim for "'[l]iability of the person,' 
" which means " ' "[l]iability for which one is personally accountable and for which a wronged 

http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx
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party can seek satisfaction out of the wrongdoer's personal assets." ' " (Dacey v. Taraday, supra, 
196 Cal.App.4th at p. 982, quoting Yool, supra, 151 Cal.App.4th at p. 875.) 
 
Here, as in Stoltenberg, the alleged misrepresentations were made and/or ratified by Mr. 
Mansdorf or his agents and they occurred before Mr. Mansdorf’s death. Thus, section 366.2 bars 
MacNamara’s claims against Mrs. Mansdorf and Gonzalez as the successor trustee for Mr. 
Mansdorf’s actions. 
 

9) Gonzalez v. Etingoff, Mikhail & Taimoor 
Case No. BC5428580 (Pending) 

Legal Malpractice, Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Fraud against Gonzalez’s former attorney 
Elaine Etingoff, and the two individuals who paid her, Youseff Mikhail and Taimoor Bidari 
http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx? 
The original complaint was for Legal Malpractice and Breach of Fiduciary Duty.  Etingoff’s 
demurrer was overruled on the Legal Malpractice issue, and sustained on the Breach of Fiduciary 
Duty issue. 
A First Amended complaint was filed on ___, adding fraud and Joe & Taimoor.  Discovery was 
served upon Etingoff April 29, 2015. 
 

10) Gonzalez v. Dorthy J. Stauch 
Case No. BC516968 (Pending) 

The Lender on Gonzalez’s $2MM mobile home park put him in default over a $13,000 tax bill, 
then would not let him reinstate per the law, then forced the foreclosure with Gonzalez’s attorney 
literally failing to file a reply and a final ex parte to stop the sale, then literally disappearing for 
over three months.  The court on April 30, 2015, called counsel via telephone, (who was not 
present for the status conference hearing), told counsel his behavior was unacceptable, 
sanctioned him, and required him to call Gonzalez.  The Court cautioned Gonzalez that he may 
indeed need to contact the Bar Association over this matter. 
We need to obtain all the information Bruce Boice had regarding his interactions and 
communications with opposing counsel right up to the sale and afterwards. 
We need to amend the complaint to add in those facts and claims, and the facts and claims 
against the Purchaser who went out to the property, threw away trailers and is stealing the 
monthly rent money. 
John may be our attorney, but we need some money for that. 
We may be able to get the $4,000 Jaime paid Bruce back when we speak with Bruce this week, 
together with Rick Martin. 
 

11) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
Complain for Fraud, Jaime individually, as co-executor and as Trustee and Linda individually 

and as co-executor 
 v.  

John C. Torjesen; Torjesen & Associates, PC; Christopher Barnes, Esq; Mancini & Associates; 
Howard Weinberg; Dr. Bambang Rachmidi; County Line Holdings, LLC 

1. Fraud; 
2. Abuse of Process; 
3. Malicious Prosecution; 

http://www.lacourt.org/casesummary/ui/casesummary.aspx
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4. Attempted Fraudulent Conversion; 
5. Attempted Grand Theft; 
6. Interference with current and prospective economic business advantage; 
7. Financial Elder Abuse; 
8. Unlawful Business Practices & Acts; 
9. Unjust Enrichment. 

Problem: No attorney to go litigate, documents not finished. 
Estimated Completion date: May 15, 2015. 
 

12) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
The Estate of Mildred Mansdorf 

Documents are complete, no attorney. 
 
Need to open the estate by filing the documents the probate attorney has drafted, but another 
attorney is required to represent Linda and Jaime as the administrators of Mildred’s Estate.  The 
purpose: to file a CCP section 473(d) motion to vacate the McClanahan default judgment against 
Mildred, and vacate the $12MM default judgment. 
 
The CCP 473(d) motion to vacate a void judgment is WRITTEN AND COMPLETE. 
 
The "Answer" is WRITTEN AND COMPLETE 
 
I am in the process of drafting the cross complaint. 
Estimated Completion date: May 15, 2015. 
  

13) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
Complaint against Rufus Von Thulen Rhoades 

 
Fraud, deceit, corporate identity theft, financial elder abuse, unlawful business practices and acts, 
unjust enrichment, Interference with current and prospective economic business advantage. 
Conversion, embezzlement for stealing Pacific Coast Lessor, Inc., and the hundreds of thousands 
of revenue in leasing money since 2003. 
 
Bar Association Complaint/Elder Abuse Complaint complete. 
 
Draft complaint for fraud and theft in progress. 
 
Motion for appointment of receiver in progress. 
 
Estimated completion date: May 20 15, 2015  
 
  

14) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the White House in Malibu 

Title Work in progress. Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date - May 30, 2015 
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15) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the Grey House in Malibu 

Title Work in progress. Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date – May 30, 2015 
 

16) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the Rambler House in Malibu 

Title Work in progress. Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

17) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the Flinstone House in Malibu 

Title Work in progress. Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

18) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the 400 Acre Park in Malibu 

Title Work in progress. Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

19) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the remaining parcels/homes in Malibu 

Title Work in progress.  Stolen title, title washing. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
  

20) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the 650 Acres in La Tuna donated to the DMCA  

Title Work in progress. Main point: you cannot transfer property into, then out of a corporation 
that never existed.  The transfers are “void”. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

21) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
850 Petition on the 300 Entitled-to-build-218-homes Acres Whitebird holds in La Tuna canyon  

Title Work in progress.  Main point: you cannot transfer property into, then out of a corporation 
that never existed.  The transfers are “void”. 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

22) No Case Number Yet, Not Filed 
Lawsuit against Whitebird, Linda Thomas, Richard Percell, Rufus Rhoades, Susan Rhoades, 

PET companies, GSC company, Donald D. Hensel, Guillermo (Bill) Morgan, the Santa Monica 
Mountains Conservation Authority, the Desert and Mountain Conservation Authority and Joseph 

T. Edmitson. 
 

1. Fraud; 
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2. Abuse of Process; 
3. Malicious Prosecution; 
4. Attempted Fraudulent Conversion; 
5. Attempted Grand Theft; 
6. Interference with current and prospective economic business advantage; 
7. Financial Elder Abuse; 
8. Unlawful Business Practices & Acts; 
9. Unjust Enrichment. 

 
Estimated Completion date – June, 2015 
 

23) Theft of Glendale Property 
Require more information – approximately 1000 acres, 78 parcels. 
 

24) Theft of $100M in Stock 
Forensic Record Tracking required.  Stock information is listed in previous Wills of Lee 
Mansdorf, but no stock certificates are available. 
 


